

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015



Report and Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| Contents | Page |
|--|---------|
| | |
| Members and Advisors | 2 |
| Report of the Committee of Management | 3 - 4 |
| Statement of Committee Responsibilities | 5 |
| Committee of Management's Statement on Internal Financial Controls | 6 |
| Auditor's Report on Corporate Governance Matters | 7 |
| Report of the Independent Auditor | 8 - 9 |
| Income and Expenditure Account | 10 |
| Balance Sheet | 11 |
| Cash Flow Statement | 12 |
| Notes to the Financial Statement | 13 - 27 |

Registration Particulars:

| Financial Conduct Authority | Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 Registered Number 2400 (S) |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Scottish Housing Regulator | Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 Registered Number HAL 274 |
| Scottish Charity Number | SC043725 |

Members and Advisers

Committee of Management

L McElroy - Chairperson

M O'Donnell (resigned secretary 20 January 2015)

A Scott A Hendry B Johnston A Blair

C McKinlay (appointed secretary 20 January 2015)

J Foy (resigned 19 August 2014)

C McNealy J Webster

A Howard (appointed 15 April 2014) E Martin (appointed 19 August 2014) J Connelly (appointed 16 June 2015)

Registered Office

3 Graham Square

Glasgow G31 1AD

Auditor

Scott-Moncrieff

Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditor 25 Bothwell Street

Glasgow G2 6NL

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland

139 St Vincent Street

Glasgow G2 5JF

Solicitors

DWF LLP

Dalmore House 310 St Vincent Street

Glasgow G2 5QR

Report and Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| Contents | Page |
|--|---------|
| Members and Advisors | 2 |
| Report of the Committee of Management | 3 - 4 |
| Statement of Committee Responsibilities | 5 |
| Committee of Management's Statement on Internal Financial Controls | 6 |
| Auditor's Report on Corporate Governance Matters | 7 |
| Report of the Independent Auditor | 8 - 9 |
| Income and Expenditure Account | 10 |
| Balance Sheet | 11 |
| Cash Flow Statement | 12 |
| Notes to the Financial Statement | 13 - 27 |

Registration Particulars:

| Financial Conduct Authority | Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 Registered Number 2400 (S) |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Scottish Housing Regulator | Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 Registered Number HAL 274 |
| Scottish Charity Number | SC043725 |

Members and Advisers

Committee of Management

L McElroy - Chairperson

M O'Donnell (resigned secretary 20 January 2015)

A Scott A Hendry B Johnston A Blair

C McKinlay (appointed secretary 20 January 2015)

J Foy (resigned 19 August 2014)

C McNealy J Webster

A Howard (appointed 15 April 2014) E Martin (appointed 19 August 2014)

Registered Office

3 Graham Square

Glasgow G31 1AD

Auditor

Scott-Moncrieff

Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditor 25 Bothwell Street

Glasgow G2 6NL

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland

139 St Vincent Street

Glasgow G2 5JF

Solicitors

DWF LLP

Dalmore House 310 St Vincent Street

Glasgow G2 5QR

Report of the Committee of Management For the year ended 31 March 2015

The Committee of Management present their report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Association is the provision, construction, improvement and management of rented and shared ownership accommodation.

Molendinar Park Housing Association is registered with the Financial Conduct Authority as a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society and with the Scottish Housing Regulator as a Registered Social Landlord.

The Association became a registered charity in January 2014.

Business review

The results for the year are shown in the attached income and expenditure account. This has been a year of consolidation for the Association as the Committee of Management has prioritised its planning and preparation for the up-coming retirement of the Director, Rob Joiner. Rob has been with the Association since its inception and has been instrumental in leading the Association's strategy of providing high quality accommodation in the social housing sector.

During his period of office the Association has developed a substantial presence in the east end of Glasgow and has won major architectural recognition being awarded several RIBA Awards including Client of the Year, the Regeneration of Scotland Supreme Award, shortlisted for the RIAS Anthony Doolan, Best Building in Scotland Award, The Glasgow Institute of Architects Design Award, Saltire Awards as well as recognition for its environmental contributions. This solid foundation along with well thought out and professionally implemented policies enable the Committee to report that the work of the Association continues to result in stable and well balanced communities which are sustainable and desirable in the social housing context.

Void levels are low and the level of satisfaction among tenants and owners continues to be very high. The Committee, however, is guarded against complacency, and to this end, over the last year has developed the organisational structure to improve scrutiny of the Association's practices during this important time of change.

Result for the year and transfers

The results for the year are shown in the Income and Expenditure Account on page 10.

Credit Payment Policy

The Association's policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors complies with the Confederation of British Industry guidelines. The average payment period is thirty days.

Maintenance policies

The Association seeks to maintain its properties to the highest standard. To this end, programmes of cyclical repairs are carried out in the medium term to deal with the gradual and predictable deterioration of building components. It is expected that the cost of all these repairs would be charged to the Income and Expenditure account.

In addition, the Association has a long-term programme of major repairs to cover for works which have become necessary since the original development was completed, included works required by subsequent legislative changes. This includes replacement or repairs to features of the properties, which have come to the end of their economic lives. In line with the SORP 2010, replacements to building components are capitalised in the financial statements as they occur. All other major repairs are charged to the Income and Expenditure account.

Report of the Committee of Management For the year ended 31 March 2015

Treasury Management

The Association has an active treasury management function, which operates in accordance with the Treasury Policy approved by the Committee of Management. In this way the Association manages its borrowing arrangements to ensure that it is always in a position to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, whilst minimising excess cash and liquid resources held.

Internal Financial Control

The Committee of Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Association's system of internal control. Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Association and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The key procedures which the Committee of Management has established with a view to providing effective internal financial control are outlined on page 6.

Employee Involvement and Health & Safety

The Association encourages employee involvement in all major initiatives.

Future Developments

Subject to the availability of public funding the Association is committed to an ongoing development programme to provide new housing for our tenants.

Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint Scott-Moncrieff, Chartered Accountants, will be put to the members at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Committee of Management

L McElroy

Dated: 16 June 2015

Statement of Committee Responsibilities For the year ended 31 March 2015

Under the legislation relating to Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies we are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of the surplus or deficit of the Association for that period. In preparing those financial statements we are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- make reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Association will continue in business.

We are also responsible for:

- keeping proper accounting records;
- safeguarding the Association's assets;
- taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud.

As far as the committee members are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware and the Committee members have taken all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to ensure that the auditor is aware of any such information.

On behalf of the Committee of Management

L McElroy

Dated: 16 June 2015

Committee of Management's Statement on Internal Financial Controls For the year ended 31 March 2015

The Committee of Management acknowledge their ultimate responsibility for ensuring that the Association has in place a system of controls that is appropriate to the various business environments in which it operates. These controls are designed to give reasonable assurance with respect to:

- the reliability of financial information used within the Association or for publication;
- the maintenance of proper accounting records, and
- the safeguarding of assets (against unauthorised use or disposition).

It is the Committee of Management's responsibility to establish and maintain systems of internal financial control. Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material financial misstatement or loss. Key elements include ensuring that:

- formal policies and procedures are in place, including the documentation of key systems and rules relating to the delegation of authorities, which allow the monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the Association's assets.
- experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for important business functions, annual appraisal procedures have been established to maintain standards of performance.
- forecasts and budgets are prepared regularly which allow the Committee of Management and staff to
 monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and progress towards financial plans set for
 the year and the medium term; regular management accounts are prepared promptly, providing
 relevant, reliable and up-to-date financial and other information and significant variances from budgets
 are investigated as appropriate.
- all significant new initiatives, major commitments and investment projects are subject to formal authorisation procedures, through the Committee of Management.
- the Committee of Management review reports from management, from directors, staff and from the external auditor to provide reasonable assurance that control procedures are in place and are being followed, including a general review of the major risks facing the Association.
- formal procedures have been established for instituting appropriate action to correct weaknesses identified from the above reports.

The Committee of Management have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control in existence in the Association for the year ended 31 March 2015 and until the below date. No weaknesses were found in internal financial controls which resulted in material losses, contingencies, or uncertainties which require disclosure in the financial statements or in the auditor's report on the financial statements.

On behalf of the Committee of Management

L McElroy

Dated: 16 June 2015

Loke BUCER

Auditor's Report on Corporate Governance Matters

In addition to our audit of the Financial Statements, we have reviewed your statements on pages 5-6 concerning the Association's compliance with the information required by the Regulatory Standards in respect of internal financial controls contained within the publication "Our Regulatory Framework" and associated Regulatory Advisory Notes which are issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out our review having regard to the requirements on corporate governance matters within Bulletin 2006/5 issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The Bulletin does not require us to review the effectiveness of the Association's procedures for ensuring compliance with the guidance notes, nor to investigate the appropriateness of the reason given for non-compliance.

Opinion

In our opinion the Statement on Internal Financial Control on page 6 has provided the disclosures required by the relevant Regulatory Standards within the publication "Our Regulatory Framework" and associated Regulatory Advisory Notes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal financial controls and is consistent with the information which came to our attention as a result of our audit work on the Financial Statements.

Through our enquiry of certain members of the Management Committee and Officers of the Association and examination of relevant documents, we have satisfied ourselves that the Management Committee's Statement on Internal Financial Control appropriately reflects the Association's compliance with the information required by the relevant Regulatory Standards in respect of internal financial controls contained within the publication "Our Regulatory Framework" and associated Regulatory Advisory Notes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal financial controls.

Scott-Moncrieff

Chartered Accountants

7 str - Moneray

Statutory Auditor

25 Bothwell Street

Glasgow G2 6NL

Dated: 16 June 2015

Report of the Independent Auditor To the members of Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015 which comprise the income and expenditure account, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement and related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Association's members as a body, in accordance with Section 9 of the Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Association's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the Association's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Committee of Management and auditor

As explained more fully in the statement of Committee Responsibilities set out on page 5, the committee members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's web-site at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Association's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its surplus for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Statement of Recommended Practice – Accounting by Registered Social Housing Providers issued in 2010;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, Part 6 the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2012 issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator.

Report of the Independent Auditor
To the Members of Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or
- the Association has not kept proper accounting records; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Scott-Moncrieff

Chartered Accountants

Statt-drawing

Statutory Auditor

25 Bothwell Street

Glasgow G2 6NL

Dated: 16 June 2015

Income and Expenditure Account For the year ended 31 March 2015

| | Notes | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|--|-------|--------------------|--------------------|
| Turnover | 2 | 1,924,451 | 1,927,480 |
| Less: Operating costs | 2 | (1,605,072) | (1,634,564) |
| Operating surplus | 2 | 319,379 | 292,916 |
| Gain on sale of assets Interest payable and other charges | 5 | 40,731 (48,098) | 66,115 (52,492) |
| Surplus on ordinary activities before tax Taxation | 4 | 312,012 | 306,539 1,325 |
| Surplus for year after taxation | 6 | 312,012 | 307,864 |

The results for the year relate wholly to continuing activities.

There are no recognised gains or losses for the year other than the surplus for the year

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form part of the financial statements.

Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2015

| | Notes | | 015 | |)14 |
|--|--------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|--|----------------------------|
| Tangible Fixed Assets Housing properties | 7 | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| - gross cost less depreciation Less : HAG | 7 | | 16,174,443 (11,198,348) | | 16,090,933 (11,198,348) |
| | | | 4,976,095 | | 4,892,585 |
| Other Assets | 7 | | 39,471 | | 40,584 |
| | | | 5,015,566 | | 4,933,169 |
| Current Assets Debtors Cash at bank and in hand | 8 | 145,988 474,359 620,347 | | 104,896 481,736 ———————————————————————————————————— | |
| Current Liabilities | | | | | |
| Creditors due within one year | 9 | (434,453) | | (447,041) | |
| Net current assets | | | 185,894 | | 139,591 |
| | | | 5,201,460 | | 5,072,760 |
| Creditors due after more than one year | 10 | | (3,011,353) | | (3,194,666) |
| Provisions for liabilities and Charges | , | | | | |
| Deferred taxation Net Assets | 4 | | 2,190,107 | | 1,878,094 |
| Capital and Reserves | | | - | | - |
| Share capital Designated reserves Revenue Reserves | 14 6 6 | | 16 405,455 1,784,636 | | 15 593,157 1,284,922 |
| | | | 2,190,107 | | 1,878,094 |

These financial statements were approved by the Committee of Management and authorised for issue on 16 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

L McElroy - Chairperson...

Andrew Scott - Committee member:.

C McKinlay - Secretary: ...

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form part of the financial statements.

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2015

| | Notes | 201 | 201 | | |
|---|-------|----------------|---------------------|-----------------------|---------------------|
| Net cash inflow from operating activities | 15 | £ | £ 394,299 | £ | £ 527,053 |
| Returns on investments and servicing of finance | | | | | |
| Interest paid | | (45,321) | | (52,492) | |
| | | | (45,321) | | (52,492) |
| Taxation Corporation tax paid | | (10,090) | | (72,991) | |
| Net cash outflow on taxation | | | (10,090) | 30 | (72,991) |
| Investing activities | | | | | |
| Sale of fixed assets | | 52,140 | | 111,804 | |
| Cash paid for construction and purchases Housing association grant (paid) | | (239,100) | | (314,611) (42,769) | |
| Net cash (outflow) from investing activities | | | (186,960) | | (245,576) |
| Net cash inflow before financing | | | 151,928 | | 155,994 |
| Financing | | | | | |
| Loan principal repayments Increase in share capital | | (159,306) 1 | | (292,753) 1 | |
| Net cash (outflow) from financing | | | (159,305) | | (292,752) |
| (Decrease) in cash | 15 | | (7,377) | | (136,758) |

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form part of the financial statements

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Accounting Policies

(a) Introduction, accounting basis and going concern

The principal accounting policies of the Association are set out in the paragraphs (b) to (o) below. The Association is incorporated under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and is registered with the Financial Conduct Authority. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, and in compliance with the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2012 issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator and The Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), "Accounting by Registered Social Housing Providers, Update 2010".

The Committee of Management anticipate that a surplus will be generated in the year to 31 March 2015. The Association has a healthy cash and net current asset position and thus the Committee of Management are satisfied that there is sufficient resources in place to continue operating for the foreseeable future. Thus the Committee of Management continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statement.

(b) Finance

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the capital expenditure referred to in note 7 will be grant aided, funded by loans or met out of reserves, or from proceeds of sales.

(c) Turnover

Turnover represents rental and service charge income receivable, fees receivable and revenue grants receivable from local authorities and other agencies, first tranche sales of shared ownership properties and sales of shared equity properties.

(d) Housing Association Grants

Housing Association Grants (HAG) are utilised to reduce the amount of mortgage loan in respect of an approved scheme to the amount which it is estimated can be serviced by the net annual income of the scheme. The amount of HAG is calculated on the qualifying cost (note 1(f)) of the scheme in accordance with instructions issued from time to time. HAG and other grants are repayable under certain circumstances. These include the disposal of the properties to which the grants relate.

(e) Housing Association Grant - Acquisition and Development Allowances receivable

Acquisition and Development Allowances are advanced as grants. They are intended to finance certain internal administrative costs relating to the acquisition and development of housing land and buildings for approved schemes. Development allowances become available in instalments according to the progress of work on the scheme. These allowances are credited to development costs in line with the progress of the contract to which they relate.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

(f) Fixed assets - Housing land and buildings (note 7)

Housing properties are stated at cost less housing association grant less accumulated depreciation. The cost of such properties includes the following:

- (i) cost of acquiring land and buildings
- (ii) development expenditure including applicable overheads
- (iii) interest charged on the loans raised to finance the scheme

These costs are either termed "qualifying costs" for approved HAG schemes and are considered for mortgage loans by the relevant lending authorities or they are met out of the Association's reserves.

All invoices and architects' certificates relating to capital expenditure incurred in the year at gross value before retentions are included in the financial statements for the year, provided that the dates of issue or valuations are prior to the year end.

Works to existing properties will generally be capitalised under the following circumstances:

- (i) Where a component of the housing property that has been treated separately for depreciation purposes and depreciated over its useful economic life is replaced or restored; or
- (ii) Where the subsequent expenditure provides an enhancement of the economic benefits of the tangible fixed assets in excess of the previously assessed standard of performance. Such enhancement can occur if the improvements result in an increase in rental income, a material reduction in future maintenance costs or a significant extension of the life of the property.

Works to existing properties which fail to meet the above criteria are charged to the Income and Expenditure account.

Development costs are capitalised to the extent that they are attributable to specific schemes, where such costs are not felt to be excessive.

If expenditure does not qualify for HAG, it is nevertheless capitalised.

Expenditure on schemes which are subsequently aborted is written off in the year in which it is recognised that the scheme will not be developed to completion.

Interest on the loan financing the development is capitalised up to the relevant date of completion.

(g) Depreciation

(i) Housing Properties

Housing properties are stated at cost, less social housing and other public grants and less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected economic useful lives of each major component that makes up the housing property as follows:

Land Not depreciated
Structure Over 50 years
Windows Over 40 years
Bathrooms Over 30 years
Kitchens Over 20 years
Central Heating Over 20 years

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

(ii) Other fixed assets

The Association's assets are written off evenly over their expected useful lives as follows:

| Office property | - | 2% | per annum |
|---------------------------------|---|-----|-----------|
| Furniture, fittings & equipment | - | 20% | per annum |
| Computer equipment | - | 33% | per annum |

A full year's depreciation is charged on these assets in the year of purchase, but no charge is made in the year of disposal.

(h) Designated Reserves

Designated reserve -reserves for future cyclical repairs and maintenance (note 6)

Accrued cyclical maintenance, being the Association's commitment to maintain its properties in accordance with a planned programme of works, is set aside in a designated reserve, to the extent that it will not be met from revenue in the year in which it is incurred.

Designated reserve - reserves for major repairs (note 6)

Accrued major repair expenditure, being the Association's commitment to undertake major repairs to its properties, is set aside in a designated reserve to the extent that it is not met from HAG.

(i) Apportionment of management expenses

Direct employee administration and operating costs have been apportioned to the income and expenditure account on the basis of costs of the staff to the extent that they are directly engaged in each of the operations dealt with in those financial statements.

(j) Lease obligations

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the income and expenditure account on the accruals basis.

(k) Sale of housing properties

Properties are disposed of under the appropriate legislation and guidance. All costs and grants relating to the share of property sold are removed from the financial statements at the date of sale. Any grants received that cannot be repaid from the proceeds of sale are abated and the grants removed from the financial statements.

First tranche Shared Ownership disposals are credited to turnover on completion, the cost of construction of these sales is taken to operating costs. Disposals of subsequent tranches are treated as fixed asset disposals with the gain or loss on disposal taken to the income and expenditure account, in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice. The proportion of the development cost of shared ownership properties expected to be disposed of as a first tranche sale is held in current assets until it is disposed of. The remaining part of the development cost is treated as a fixed asset.

Disposals under Shared Equity schemes are accounted for in the income and expenditure account. The remaining equity in properties sold before 1 April 2008 is treated as a fixed asset investment, which is matched with the grant received. For properties sold after 1 April 2008 the standard security over the remaining equity lies with the Scottish Government and is therefore not reflected in the Association's balance sheet.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

(I) Value added tax

The Association de-registered for VAT in the year ended 31 March 2011. A large proportion of the income, namely rents, was exempt for VAT purposes and therefore gave rise to a partial exemption calculation. Expenditure is shown inclusive of VAT.

(m) Pensions

The Association participates in the centralised Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (SHAPS) Defined Benefit Pension Scheme and retirement benefits to employees of the Association are funded by contributions from all participating employers and employees in the Scheme. Payments are made in accordance with periodic calculations by consulting actuaries and are based on pension costs applicable across the various participating Associations taken as a whole.

The expected cost to the Association of pensions is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account so as to spread the cost of pensions over the service lives of the employees.

(n) Impairment of fixed assets

Reviews for impairment of housing properties are carried out on an annual basis and any impairment in an income-generating unit is recognised by a charge to the income and expenditure account. Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of an income-generating unit exceeds the higher of its net realisable value or its value in use. Value in use represents the net present value of expected future cash flows from these units.

Impairment of assets would be recognised in the Income and Expenditure account.

(o) Liquid Resources

Liquid resources comprise of balances held in bank current and deposit accounts, and balances held on fixed term deposit.

2. Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus/(deficit)

| | Notes | Turnover £ | Operating Costs £ | 2015 Operating Surplus £ | 2014 Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) £ |
|------------------|-------|---------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|---|
| Social lettings | 3a | 1,819,835 | (1,506,563) | 313,272 | 305,352 |
| Other Activities | 3b | 104,616 | (98,509) | 6,107 | (12,436) |
| Total | | 1,924,451 | (1,605,072) | 319,379 | 292,916 |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

3a. Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus/(deficit) from social letting activities

| Income from social lettings Rent receivable net of service charges Service charges | General Needs Housing £ 1,446,498 | Sheltered Housing £ 113,233 47,137 | Shared ownership £ 110,713 79,772 | 2015 Total £ 1,670,444 126,909 | 2014 Total £ 1,630,407 128,921 |
|---|--|--|--------------------------------------|--|---|
| Gross income from rents net of service charges Less: Rent Losses from Voids | 1,446,498 (8,428) | 160,370 (1,981) | 190,485 | 1,797,353 (10,409) | 1,759,328 (14,066) |
| Grants from Scottish Ministers Other revenue grants | 1,438,070 | 158,389 | 190,485 | 1,786,944 | 1,745,262 |
| Total Income from social letting | 1,470,961 | 158,389 | 190,485 | 1,819,835 | 1,768,104 |
| Expenditure on Social Letting Activities Service costs Management and maintenance administration costs Reactive Maintenance Planned and Cyclical Maintenance including major repairs Bad Debts – rents and service charges Depreciation of social housing Recoverable repairs | 625,930 212,454 202,309 133,630 32,891 | 46,443 40,241 17,988 32,874 - 2,317 | 72,648 74,557 - - 12,281 | 119,091 740,728 230,442 235,182 - 148,228 32,891 | 149,525 651,305 234,390 265,623 139,667 22,242 |
| Operating costs for social letting | 1,207,214 | 139,863 | 159,486 | 1,506,563 | 1,462,752 |
| Operating Surplus/(deficit) for social lettings 2015 Operating Surplus/(deficit) for social lettings 2014 | 263,747 | 18,526 | 30,999 | 313,272 | 305,352 |
| | | | | | |

The amount for service charges receivable on housing accommodation not eligible for Housing Benefit was £nil (2014 - £nil).

The total for voids includes development voids, where the Association has chosen to keep decant properties vacant to allow developments going on site to proceed as planned.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

<u>3</u>b Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus/(deficit) from other activities

| 2014 | Total from other poticities | 2015 | Total from other activities | | Other activities | landlords) | sales to non-registered social | tranche shared ownership | improvements for sale (inc first | Developments and | service | Other agency/management | for registered social landlords | Agency/management services | Care activities | Support activates | Development activities | Factoring | Care and repair | Wider action/wider role | |
|-----------|-----------------------------|----------|-----------------------------|-----------|------------------|------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------|---------|-------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------------|-----------|-----------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|
| | | ı | | | ľ | T) | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | T | ı | ı | Grants from Scottish Ministers |
| | | ı | | | ı | 1 | | | | | | 1 | 1 | | 1 | 1 | | ï | ı | 1 | Other revenue grants |
| | | a | | li contra | | ì | | | | | | 1 | j | | 1 | 1 | ì | 1 | ı | 1 | Supporting people income |
| 159,376 | | 104,616 | | 10,010 | 79 910 | | | 1 | | | | 1 | 1 | | 1 | 1 | 1 | 24,706 | 1 | | Other Income £ |
| 159,376 | | 104,616 | | 0,010 | 79 910 | | | J | | | | ı | ı | | ı | 1 | 1 | 24,706 | r | ı | Total Turnover £ |
| | | ï | | | î | | | Ĭ. | | | | Ě | Ě | | Ě | ī | ř | Ē | Ē | Ē | Operating costs - bad debts |
| (171,812) | | (98,509) | | (19,402) | (70 /02) | | | Ľ. | | | | L | | | ij | L | I . | (19.107) | Ļ | I) | Other operating costs |
| | | 6,107 | | 300 | 202 | | | Ĺ | | | | 1 | 1 | | t | Ĭ | ľ | 5.599 | ı | Ľ | Operating surplus/ (deficit) |
| (12,436) | | ı | | (5,423) | (E 400) | | | E | | | | ı | | | ı. | ı | ' ' | (24.105) | r\ | | 2014 £ |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. Taxation

5.

The charge in respect of corporation tax arose in respect of the Association's housing and other activities. The charge was made up as follows:

| | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|---|---|------------------|
| UK Corporation tax based on the results for the year at nil% (2014 $-24\%)$ Over provision in prior year | - | (1,325) |
| Total current tax charge | - | (1,325) |
| Deferred tax at nil% (2014 – 26%) Origination and reversal of timing differences Adjustments in respect of previous periods Effect of tax rate change on opening balance Total deferred tax charge | - | - - - - |
| Tax on profit on ordinary activities | | (1,325) |
| Factors affecting current tax charge | | |
| Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation (2015 – 10 months only) | | - |
| Surplus on ordinary activities by rate of tax Expenses not deductible for tax purposes – fixed assets Marginal relief Capital Allowances in excess of timings differences Other Short term timing differences Total current tax The Association obtained charitable status in January 2014 therefore no | - | - |
| corporation tax is due. | | |
| On Bank Loans and Overdrafts | 48,098 | 52,492 |
| On Dank Loans and Overdians | ======================================= | JZ,43Z |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 6. | Reserves | Transfer (to) revenue | | | | |
|-----|--------------------------|-----------------------|-----------|---------------------|--|--|
| | | At 31 March 2014 | reserve | At 31 March 2015 | | |
| | | £ | £ | £ | | |
| (a) | Designated reserves | | | | | |
| | Cyclical repairs reserve | 34,270 | (20,199) | 14,071 | | |
| | Major repairs reserve | 558,887 | (167,503) | 391,384 | | |
| | | 593,157 | (187,702) | 405,455 | | |

No restrictions are placed upon these reserves, but the Committee has designated their use for specific purposes.

| (b) | Revenue reserves | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|-----|-----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| | At 1 April 2014 | 1,284,922 | 966,027 |
| | Surplus for year | 312,012 | 307,864 |
| | Transfer from designated reserves | 187,702 | 11,031 |
| | At 31 March 2015 | 1,784,636 | 1,284,922 |
| | | | |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 7. Tangible Fixed Assets Cost At 1 April 2014 Additions during year Disposals in year | Housing properties held for letting 12,731,252 239,100 (12,108) | Completed shared ownership housing properties 4,388,972 | Mortgage to rent 36,164 | Total Housing Properties 17,156,388 239,100 (12,108) | Office Equipment 136,037 | Office property 55,629 | Total 17,348,054 239,100 (12,108) |
|--|---|---|-------------------------|--|--------------------------------|------------------------------|--|
| At 31 March 2015 | 12,995,843 | 4,351,373 | 36,164 | 17,383,380 | 136,037 | 55,629 | 17,575,046 |
| Housing Association Grant At 1 April 2014 Additions during year Transfer | 7,480,565 | 3,692,238 | 25,545 | 11,198,348 | 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 | 11,198,348 |
| At 31 March 2015 | 7,508,613 | 3,664,190 | 25,545 | 11,198,348 | I | - | 11,198,348 |
| Depreciation At 1 April 2014 Provided during year Disposals in year | 964,582 134,834 (3,633) | 100,223 | 650 | 1,065,455 147,115 (3,633) | 136,037 | 15,045 | 1,216,537 148,228 (3,633) |
| At 31 March 2015 | 1,095,783 | 112,504 | 029 | 1,208,937 | 136,037 | 16,158 | 1,361,132 |
| Net book value As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014 | 4,391,447 | 574,679 | 696'6 | 4,976,095 | | 39,471 | 5,015,566 |

Total major repair costs during the year were £242,077 (2014: £339,528) of which £239,100 (2014: £314,611) was capitalised. Of the amount capitalised £239,100 (2014: £314,611) related to replacements and £nil (2014: £nil) related to improvements.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 8. | Debtors | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|-----|--|---------------------|--------------------|
| | Gross rents in arrears Less: bad debt provision | 75,423 (17,001) | 79,556 (17,001) |
| | | 58,422 | 62,555 |
| | Other debtors Prepayments and accrued income | 43,494 44,072 | 16,540 25,801 |
| | | 145,988 | 104,896 |
| 9. | Creditors due within one year | | |
| Э. | Creditors due within one year | | |
| | Trade creditors | 2,835 | 46,314 |
| | Loans (note 10) | 168,598 | 144,591 |
| | Corporation tax | - 40,327 | 10,089 35,884 |
| | Accruals and deferred income Prepaid rent | 118,879 | 106,192 |
| | Other creditors | 103,814 | 103,971 |
| | | 434,453 | 447,041 |
| | | | |
| 10. | Creditors due after more than one year | | |
| | Loans | 3,011,353 | 3,194,666 |
| | The loans are secured by both a fixed and specific charge on the Associa | ation's properties. | |
| | In one year or less (note 9) | 168,598 | 144,591 |
| | Between one and two years | 170,170 | 146,446 |
| | Between two and five years | 520,090 | 450,137 |
| | In five years or more | 2,321,093 | 2,598,083 |
| | | 3,179,951 | 3,339,257 |
| | | | |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 11. | Employees | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|-----|--|-------------------|-------------------|
| | Staff costs during year Wages and salaries Pension costs | 424,028 76,063 | 389,022 58,376 |
| | Social security costs Temporary or agency staff | 39,445 9,000 | 36,568 8,475 |
| | | 548,536 ——— | <u>492,441</u> |
| | The average full time equivalent number of persons employed by the Association during the year was as follows: | No | No |
| | Housing Services and Management Staff | 10 | 9 |

The Directors are defined as the members of the Committee of Management, the Director and any other person reporting directly to the Director or the Committee of Management whose total emoluments exceed £60,000 per year. The Association does not have any Directors in 2015 under this definition. No officers received emoluments (excluding pension contributions) over £60,000)

| | 2015 | 2014 |
|--|----------------------|--------|
| | £ | £ |
| Emoluments payable to Chief Executive (2014: h director) excluding pension contributions | ghest paid 45.301 | 43,655 |
| director) excluding pension contributions | 40,301 | |

The Association's pension contributions for the Director in the year amounted to £nil (2014 - £nil).

No member of the Committee of Management received any emoluments in respect of their services to the Association.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

12. Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (SHAPS)

Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited participates in the Scottish Housing Associations' Pension Scheme ('the Scheme'). The Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Scheme is funded and is contracted-out of the State Pension Scheme.

It is not possible in the normal course of events to identify the share of underlying assets and liabilities belonging to an individual participating employer as the Scheme is a multi-employer arrangement where the assets are co-mingled for investment purposes, benefits are paid from the total Scheme assets and the contribution rate for all employers is set by reference to the overall financial position of the Scheme rather than by reference to individual employer experience. Accordingly, due to the nature of the Scheme, the accounting charge for the period under FRS 17 represents the employer contribution payable.

The Trustee commissions an actuarial valuation of the Scheme every three years. The main purpose of the valuation is to determine the financial position of the Scheme in order to determine the level of future contributions required, so that the Scheme can meet its pension obligations as they fall due.

The last formal valuation of the Scheme was performed as at 30 September 2012 by a professionally qualified actuary using the "projected unit credit" method. The market value of the Scheme's assets at the valuation date was £394 million. The valuation revealed a shortfall of assets compared to liabilities of £304 million, equivalent to a past service funding level of 56.4%.

The Scheme Actuary has prepared an Actuarial Report that provides an approximate update on the funding position of the Scheme as at 30 September 2014. Such a report is required by legislation for years in which a full actuarial valuation is not carried out. The funding update revealed an increase in the assets of the Scheme to £539 million and indicated a decrease in the shortfall of assets compared to liabilities to approximately £281 million, equivalent to a past service funding level of 66%.

Following a change in legislation in September 2005 there is a potential debt on the employer that could be levied by the Trustee of the Scheme. The debt is due in the event of the employer ceasing to participate in the Scheme or the Scheme winding up.

The debt for the Scheme as a whole is calculated by comparing the liabilities for the Scheme (calculated on a buy-out basis, i.e. the cost of securing benefits by purchasing annuity policies from an insurer, (plus an allowance for expenses) with the assets of the Scheme. If the liabilities exceed assets there is a buy-out debt.

The leaving employer's share of the buy-out debt is the proportion of the Scheme's liability attributable to employment with the leaving employer compared to the total amount of the Scheme's liabilities (relating to employment with all the employers). The leaving employers debt therefore includes a share of any 'orphan' liabilities in respect of previously participating employers. The amount of the debt therefore depends on many factors including total Scheme liabilities, Scheme investment performance, the liabilities in respect of current and former employees of the employer, financial conditions at the lime of the cessation event and the insurance buy-cut market. The amounts of debt can therefore be volatile over time.

Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited has been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the Scheme based on the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 September 2014. As of this date the estimated employer debt for Molendinar Park Housing Association Limited was £1,649,082.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

12. Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (SHAPS)

The Scheme offers six benefit structures to employers, namely:

- Final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate.
- Career average revalued earnings with a 1/60th accrual rate.
- Career average revalued earnings with a 1/70th accrual rate.
- Career average revalued earnings with a 1/80th accrual rate.
- Career average revalued earnings with a 1/120th accrual rate, contracted in.
- Defined contribution (DC) option.

An employer can elect to operate different benefit structures for their active members (as at the first day of April in any given year) and their new entrants. The DC option can be introduced by the employer on the first day of any month after giving a minimum of three months' prior notice. The Association has elected to operate the Final salary with 1/60th accrual rate benefit option for active members.

During the accounting period the Association paid contributions at the rate of 9.6% of pensionable salaries. Member contributions were 9.6%.

The key valuation assumptions used to determine the assets and liabilities of the Scottish Housing Associations' Pension Scheme are:

| 2012 Valuation Assumptions | % p.a. |
|--|--------|
| Investment return pre retirement | 5.3 |
| Investment return post retirement – non pensioners | 3.4 |
| Investment return post retirement – pensioners | 3.4 |
| Rate of salary increases | 4.1 |
| Rate of pension increases | 2.2 |
| Pension accrued pre 6 April 2005 in excess of GMP | 2.0 |
| Pension accrued post 5 April 2005 | |
| (for leavers before 1 October 1993 pension increases are 5.0%) | 1.7 |
| Rate of price inflation | 2.6 |

Mortality Tables

| Non-pensioners | 44% of SP1MA (males) and S1PFA (females) projected using CMI_2011 with a |
|----------------|--|
| | 1 1 500/ 1 5 1 4 050/ m a familia |

long term improvement of 1.50% p.a. for males and 1.25% p.a. for females.

Pensioners 90% of SP1MA (males) and S1PFA (females) projected using CMI_2011 with a long term improvement of 1.50% p.a. for males and 1.25% p.a. for females.

| Contribution Rates for Future Service (payable from 1 April 2011) | % |
|---|------|
| Final salary 1/60ths | 24.6 |
| Career average revalued earnings 1/60ths | 22.4 |
| Career average revalued earnings 1/70ths | 19.2 |
| Career average revalued earnings 1/80ths | 16.9 |
| Career average revalued earnings 1/120ths | 11.4 |

Additional deficit contributions are payable from 1 April 2014 and will increase by 3% per annum each 1 April thereafter. Technical Provisions liabilities as at 30 September 2012 will be used as the reference point for calculating additional contributions.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 13. | Auditor's remuneration | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|-----|--|-----------|-----------|
| | The remuneration of the external auditor (including expenses and VAT for the year) | 6,660 | 6,660 |
| | Other services provided by external auditor | - | |
| | | 6,660 | 6,660 |
| | | | |
| 14. | Share capital | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
| 14. | Share capital Shares of £1 fully paid and issued at beginning of year Shares issued during year | | |

Each member of the Association holds one share of £1 in the Association. These shares carry no rights to dividend or distributions on a winding up. When a shareholder ceases to be a member, that person's share is cancelled and the amount paid thereon becomes the property of the Association. Each member has a right to vote at members' meetings.

| 15. | Notes to the Cash Flow Statement | 2015 £ | 2014 £ |
|-----|---|---|---|
| (a) | Reconciliation of surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities | | |
| | Surplus for the year before tax Net interest payable | 312,012 45,321 | 306,539 52,492 |
| | | 357,333 | 359,031 |
| | Depreciation Gain on sale of fixed assets (Increase)/decrease in debtors (Decrease)/increase in creditors | 148,228 (43,664) (41,092) (26,506) ———————————————————————————————————— | 139,667 (66,115) 488 93,982 527,053 |
| (b) | Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt | | |
| | (Decrease) in cash for the year Loan repayments | (7,377) 159,306 | (136,758) 292,753 |
| | Change in net debt Net debt as at 1 April 2014 | 151,929 (2,857,521) | 155,995 (3,013,516) |
| | Net debt as at 31 March 2015 | (2,705,592) | (2,857,521) |

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2015

| 15. | Notes to the Cash Flow Statement (cont'd) | As at 31 March 2014 £ | Cash flow £ | Other changes £ | As at 31 March 2015 £ |
|-----|---|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|
| (c) | Analysis of Changes in net debt | | | | |
| | Cash at bank and in hand Debt due within one year Debt due after one year | 481,736 (144,591) (3,194,666) | (7,377) (24,007) 183,313 | - | 474,359 (168,598) (3,011,353) |
| | | (2,857,521) | 151,929 | - | (2,705,592) |

16. Housing stock

| The number of units in Management at 31st March was as follows: | 2015 No | 2014 No |
|--|-----------------|-----------------|
| General Needs Housing Shared Ownership Housing Supported Housing Accommodation | 463 85 35 | 464 86 35 |
| | 583 | 585 |
| | | |

17. Related Parties

Various members of the Committee are tenants of the Association. The terms applicable to them are the same as applicable to all tenants